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For the attention of Yvonne Clooney, Programme Officer 
Office of Licensing and Guidance 
Environmental Protection Agency 
Headquarters, PO Box 3000 
Johnstown Castle Estate 
Co. Wexford 

C.C. Mr. Padraic Larkin, Director of Licensing and Guidance, Environmental Protection 
Agency 
Dr. Jonathan Derham, Office of Licensing and Guidance, Environmental Protection 
Agency 
Mr. Dara Lynnott, Director of the Enforcement, Environmental Protection Agency 

Re: Waste Licence Review Application by Neiphin Trading Limited, in respect of a 
facility at Kerdiffstown, Co. Kildare, Reg. No. 47-2 

Dear Sirs, 

We refer to your letter dated 23'd March 2006 to Mr. Brendan Slattery stating'that our 
objection is not valid because it does not comply with section 42(4)(b) of the Waste 
Management Acts, 1996 to 2005. 

For the reasons outlined below, we do not accept that our objection is invalid and we request 
the Agency to reconsider the matter, withdraw your letter dated 23'd March and reinstate our 
objection. 

1. The name and address of the objector has been clearly stated. 

The objection clearly states the name and address of the objector: Arthur Cox of 
Earlsfort Centre, Earlsfort Terrace, Dublin 2. Where the name and address of an 
agent for an undisclosed principle is given, it is the agent who must be considered the 
objector for the purposes of the Waste Management Acts, 1996 to 2005. 
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This contrasts with the Planning and Development Acts, 2000 to 2004, which clearly 
require two names to be given when an agent is acting. Specifically, section 
127(l)(b) of the Planning and Development Acts, 2000 to 2004 require an appeal to: 

“State the name and address of the appellant or person making the referral and 
other person, if any, acting on his or her behalf ’. 

The Waste Management Acts, 1996 to 2005 does not make any distinction between 
agent and client. Section 42(4)(b) requires only one name and address, that is, the 
name and the address of the objector. If the legislative intent was that a solicitor’s 
firm could not, acting on the instructions of its client, be an objector, it is submitted 
that the Waste Management Acts, 1996 to 2005 would have been drafted so that both 
the name of the agent and the principal were required. 

You will note that our objection includes the following material references: “we make 
this objection”, “our third party objection to this proposed decision”, “our request for 
an oral hearing”, “we respectfully submit” and “we request”. Having regard to the 
express terms of our objection, there is no basis upon which the Agency may 
conclude that this firm is not the objector whose name and address must be stated. 

2. The Agency represented that an objection made in this manner would be 
accepted as valid. 

On 2Sth February 2006, Ms. Eve O’Sullivan of the Office of Licensing and Guidance 
confirmed to Mr. Brendan Slattery of this office that the Agency would accept as 
valid an objection made by this firm, without disclosing the name and address of our 
client. Specifically, Mr. Slattery contacted the Agency by telephone and asked to 
speak with a person having responsibility for waste licensing. Mr. Slattery was 
directed to Ms O’Sullivan and explained to her that our client wished to remain 
anonymous for the time being and that this firm proposed to make an objection on 
behalf of the client, without disclosing their name and address. We have no doubt 
that Ms O’Sullivan appreciated the meaning of the question asked. 

Ms. O’Sullivan confirmed that an objection made by this firm, on behalf of an 
anonymous client, would be accepted as valid. This firm (and, indeed, our client) 
relied upon this representation, in making the objection in this manner and foregoing 
the opportunity to make an objection in some different manner. 

We respectfully submit that the Agency is bound by this representation and is 
estopped from denying it. Both this firm and our client are entitled to the benefit of a 
legitimate or reasonable expectation that our objection would be accepted as valid. 
Accordingly, the Agency is precluded from denying the validity of our objection. 
Both this firm and our client have been misled by the Agency and it would be unjust 
to treat our objection as invalid for failure to state the name and address of our client. 

The Courts have acknowledged that a regulatory authority, such as the Agency, may 
bind itself in this manner. For example, with both planning appeals and applications 
for a taxi licence, the Courts have concluded that the regulatory authority is bound to 
representations it has made waiving the strict requirements for the payment of 
prescribed fees. (See Maher v. An Bord Pleancila [1993] 1 IR 439 and Mulhearn v. 
Bundoran Urban District Council, High Court, unreported, 30th January 1998.) 

    
    

    
    

    
For

 in
sp

ec
tio

n p
ur

po
se

s o
nly

.

Con
se

nt 
of

 co
py

rig
ht 

ow
ne

r r
eq

uir
ed

 fo
r a

ny
 ot

he
r u

se
.

EPA Export 09-11-2015:20:13:14



,- . 

Page 3 

Neither the applicant nor any third party can suffer prejudice by the Agency 
complying with the representation it made and accepting our objection as valid. The 
terms of our objection have been circulated to the applicant and all other objectors for 
comment. These persons have the opportunity to comment on the substance of our 
objection. As there are multiple objections, the applicant is not yet entitled to receive 
a grant of waste licence: the applicant must await the outcome of the assessment of 
the objections that have been made and the further consideration of the proposed 
decision that must be undertaken by the Agency. 

The decision of the Agency to reject our objection frustrates public participation in 
the licensing process, a requirement that is long established to be fundamental to basic 
fairness and protected under the Constitution. 

3. The Agency has made a decision that our objection is valid. 

The Agency has confirmed in writing on two separate occasions that our objection 
had been accepted as valid. 

Specifically, by letter to Arthur Cox dated 3‘d March 2006, the Agency acknowledged 
receipt of our objection and expressly acknowledged Arthur Cox as the objector, 
stating: 

“As a party to the objection, you are entitled, but not required, to make a 
submission in writing to the Agency on the other objection/s ...”. 

In the same letter, the Agency invited this firm to make a submission in writing on the 
four other objections that it received. This power to circulate and invite submissions 
relates only to parties to an objection, which is defined to include any objector and the 
applicant for the waste licence. 

By letter to Arthur Cox dated 13th March 2006, the Agency informed this firm of its 
decision not to hold an oral hearing into the objections made. This letter to Arthur 
Cox refers to “your objection” and states expressly that: 

“The Board of the Agency will consider your objection together with the 
report and recommendations of the Technical Committee before making 
a final decision”. 

It is clear that the Agency had formed the view and made a decision that our objection 
was a valid one. This is consistent with the representations made to this firm before 
the objection was made. We respectfully submit that the Agency is not entitled to 
validly contradict itself and effectively change its mind upon reflection motivated by 
what appears to be (as yet uncirculated and unseen) concerns expressed by the 
applicant for the waste licence. 

4. The Agency may have had regard to irrelevant considerations. 

We are concerned that the decision to reject our objection (and implicitly to revoke 
the earlier decision to accept our objection as valid) has been made after receipt of 
and having regard to submissions from the applicant for the waste licence. We 
respectfully submit that the Agency is not entitled to have regard to the submission 
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made by the applicant and make a decision that would prejudice our objection, 
without first affording this firm an opportunity to respond. We request the Agency to 
confirm whether or not regard was had to any submission made by the applicant in the 
decision to reject our objection as invalid. 

5. The Agency has already accepted submissions on this very application that were 
made by a solicitor on behalf of an anonymous client. 

On or about 16th March 2005, Mr Niall P. O’Neill, Solicitor made submissions to the 
Agency on the application for a waste licence. The submission was made on behalf of 
clients whose name and address is not disclosed. It would appear from the public file 
for the application for a waste licence that the Agency did not reject these submissions 
in advance of making the proposed decision. 

It would seem contrary to basic fairness for the Agency to parse some distinction 
between the letter from Mr. Niall P. O’Neill and the letter from this firm. If the name 
and address of the anonymous client is important to the decision making process of 
the Agency, it should have been required of Mr. Niall P. O’Neill. The fact that it was 
not can only mean one of two things: either the requirement is not fundamental-and 
OUT objection is valid; or, the requirement is fundamental and it logically follows that 
the proposed decision in this case is compromised. 

We respectfully submit that the Agency must choose between either accepting our 
objection as valid or rejecting the proposed decision to be invalid. In the latter 
respect, we would expect that the current proposed decision might be withdrawn, the 
submission of Mr Niall P. O’Neill rejected and the proposed decision made a second 
time. 

For the reasons outlined above, we request the Agency to reconsider this matter, withdraw 
your letter dated 23‘d March and reinstate our objection. 

We confirm safe receipt of your cheque for €300, returning to us the appropriate fee that 
accompanied our objection. Pending reinstatement of our objection, we propose hold this 
amount and any interest accruing on trust for and to the account of the Agency. 

We should be obliged to hear from you by return. 

Yours faithfully, 

ARThUR COX 
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